
 

 

 

Mayor 

     Timothy Clark  

 

 

Council President 

      Scott Harden 

 

 

Councilors 

    Patricia Smith 

 

 

 

   Bruce Nissen 

 

 

 

Mark Clark 

 

     

 

   

Wood Village 

Urban Renewal Agency 

 
February 2nd 2017 

 

 

 
6:00 P.M.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

1) Consent Calendar 

a) Minutes of the Meeting of March 31, 2016 

b) Minutes of the Meeting of June 14, 2016 

2) Annual selection of Urban Renewal Agency Vice-Chair 

3) Resolution authorizing an engagement letter with Piper Jaffray 

 

4) Executive Session ORS 192.660(2)(e) (real property negotiations) 

 

         

 

ADJOURN   

The meeting location is wheelchair accessible. This information is available in large print 

upon request. To request large-print documents or for accommodations such as assistive 

listening device, sign language, and/or oral interpreter, please call 503-667-6211 at least two 

working days in advance of this meeting. (TDD 1-800-735-2900). 

 



MEETING OF THE 

WOOD VILLAGE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY  

March 31, 2016 

MINUTES 

 

PRESENT: Urban Renewal Chair Patricia Smith, Members Craig Howard, Scott Harden, and 

Steven Morasch, City Manager Peterson and interested parties. 

 

ABSENT: Vice-Chair Stanley Dirks, and member Tim Clark.   

 

SMITH CALLED THE MEETING TO ORDER AT 6:00PM 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

 Minutes of the Meeting of March 17, 2015 

 Minutes of the Meeting of May 20, 2015 

 

Howard stated that there are three typos on the March 17th minutes.  The typos are on pages 2, 3 

and 5.  Howard stated that there are three typos on the May 20th minutes.  They typos are on 

pages 2, 3 and 4.   

 

Upon motion by Harden, seconded by Morasch and passing 4-0, the Consent Calendar was 

approved as amended.   

 

STATUS OF THE AGENCY 

Peterson presented the report, and stated that the Urban Renewal Agency is now a viable entity.  

The net revenues are at $97,000, and are projected to be over $100,000 next year.  Peterson 

explained that the agency was formed in 2010, and encompassed the maximum potential area 

under the law.  Peterson stated that the maximum indebtedness is just over $11 million.   

 

Peterson presented a graphic of the certified value of the properties within the Urban Renewal 

area, and stated that there has been about $6.4 million in increment.  That is without any specific 

development or enhancements.  Peterson stated that value has come from appreciation of 

properties in the URA.   

 

Peterson presented a brief overview of the projects in the Urban Renewal Plan.  Peterson stated 

that the Board has the ability to get directly involved with economic development assistance 

including housing, and public facilities.  Public facilities includes a new City Hall building, and 

park improvements.  Peterson explained that there is a large grant of capacity for Urban Renewal 

Projects.   

 



March 31, 2016 

Wood Village Urban Renewal Board Minutes 

Page 2 of 6 

Peterson stated that the major happening in the Town Center is on a 5.7 acre parcel south of 

Riverwood.  The proposed project would put 40-50 single family homes on that parcel.  Peterson 

explained that the master plan amendment for the project was approved by the Planning 

Commission, and it will go before the City Council on April 12th.  Peterson stated that the 

property owner indicated that 10-30 homes could be built this year depending on how long the 

approval process takes.  Peterson stated that he is projecting that 10 homes will be built in the 

upcoming year, with full completion next year.   

 

Morasch asked if the Urban Renewal Agency is able to put together a conditional program based 

on the timing of the new development.  Peterson stated that the purpose of this presentation is to 

provide an update on where the agency is, and what the budget will look like.  Howard stated 

that from the agency’s standpoint, the new homes will enter the tax rolls whether they sell or not.  

Peterson explained that while this will be a large project for the City and Urban Renewal 

District, it is not a large project for developers.   

 

Peterson stated that other potential development projects include the redevelopment of the City 

Hall site.  Peterson explained that in two years there could be about 150 multi-family units on the 

site, as well as about 180,000 square feet of commercial space.  That has been included in the 

projections for 2017-18, and 2018-19.   

 

Peterson stated that there are also projects in the plan that have already been built and funded by 

other entities.  Peterson explained that the County extended Wood Village Blvd. and the City 

paid to extend the water and sewer lines through that area.  The Arata Road reconstruction is 

being funded with County and Federal funds, and the Urban Renewal Plan had about $2 million 

allocated for that project.   Peterson stated that the Urban Renewal Plan anticipated spending 

about 40% of the cost to update the master plan, but that has already been accomplished as well.  

In all a few million dollars has been spent to complete project in the Urban Renewal Plan, but the 

agency did not have to spend any money.   

 

Peterson presented a breakdown of the original project allocations, and stated that over $6 

million was allocated for infrastructure and other public improvements.  Peterson stated that 

additional projects that may come up in the upcoming year include 16 additional multi-family 

housing units off of Arata.  That development would probably seek SDC’s, and landscaping 

improvements.  Peterson stated that there is also a new gateway sign planned at 244th and 

Halsey.  That could be financed by the Urban Renewal Agency as well.   

 

Peterson explained that the agency is now in a place to take on projects.  Peterson stated that the 

Arata Road fence project has a rough estimate of $180,000, but we are still in the planning phase 

of that project.  Peterson stated that the Arata Road plans are about 90% complete, and 



March 31, 2016 

Wood Village Urban Renewal Board Minutes 

Page 3 of 6 

construction is scheduled to start in July.  That would have the roadway finished sometime 

around the spring of 2017.   

 

Smith asked what the demands will be with the new development.  Peterson stated that the main 

demand will be around public safety.  Peterson explained that the fire service cost is based on 

assessed value.  The Sheriff’s contract is renewed annually, and they look at service demand and 

trends.  Peterson stated that as we gain more residents, there will be increased costs for services.   

Peterson explained that the City makes a money on commercial and industrial development 

because of their lower demand on services.   

 

Morasch stated that developers can build here for less, and while the rents may be lower the cost 

benefits for developers are better here.  Peterson stated that is correct.  Morasch stated that the 

developer is getting a better benefit on property taxes compared to other regional areas.  Peterson 

stated that there is a marginal benefit compared to the two smaller neighboring communities, and 

a better benefit compared to Gresham and Portland.  Harden stated that could be a starting point 

to not give away all the potential inducements.  Peterson stated that he would recommend using 

all the tools to help redevelop in our underdeveloped areas.   

 

Morasch asked if there was any kind of master plan or vision for the City Hall site.  Morasch 

explained that he feels this site is in a prime location, and can really set the tone for the entire 

City.  Peterson stated that there is not a master plan for this site, but there are some visioning and 

concept designs.   

 

Harden asked if it would be beneficial to highlight certain areas that would be eligible for 

additional benefits.  Peterson stated that he feels he understands the Board’s direction by offering 

additional inducements for blighted areas compared to easier to develop vacant land.   Harden 

stated that he would also like to induce specific benefits for larger projects such as the former 

dog track facility.   

 

Peterson stated that the first thing an urban renewal agency needs is tax increment to induce 

someone to develop something of value.  Peterson explained that the development of the 40 new 

homes will help, and the redevelopment of this site will help as well.  Peterson stated that if a 

$40 million facility were being planned, the agency should be engaged to help induce that 

project.  Howard stated that it is easier to compute the value of a single large project compared to 

smaller projects in a blighted area.   

 

Morasch stated that he heard there were some issues with the cell towers on the dog track facility 

which has caused a delay in the building demolition.  Morasch asked if there were anything the 

agency could to do help.  Peterson stated that the issue has to deal with relocating the towers 

within a quarter mile of the current location.  The towers need to be at least 90 feet, but the 



March 31, 2016 

Wood Village Urban Renewal Board Minutes 

Page 4 of 6 

height limit in the zone is 45 feet.  Peterson explained that the authorization for the towers was 

on the building, so the questions is what occurs when there is no building.   

 

Peterson stated that there is a request to shift the administrative costs of the agency to the agency 

this year.  Peterson presented the personnel cost allocations and stated that it would be about 

$56,000.  There is also $180,000 proposed for the Arata Road fencing project, and $30,000 for 

additional development incentives.  Peterson stated that the projected ending fund balance for the 

year is $125,000.  The projected revenue for the year ahead is $103,000.  Peterson explained that 

the capital outlay is $210,000 with administrative costs at $56,000.  Peterson stated that puts total 

revenue at $227,000 and expenses at $266,000 for a borrowing needed of about $40,000.   

 

Howard asked if the agency has paid off the other debts to the City.  Peterson stated that there is 

a current payment of $12,000 that will clear the debt.  Howard stated that the Urban Renewal 

Agency needs to be in the position to pay for the services it uses from the City, and not be a drain 

on City resources.  Howard stated that he also does not want the agency to spend a lot of money 

on administrative work without getting actual projects accomplished.  Peterson stated that he 

agrees, and there may be a time in the future where an additional person may need to be hired to 

help administer the Agency.  Harden stated that concept was discussed at the last Council retreat.   

 

RESOLUTION URA 1-2016 EXTENDING THE BUSINESS INCENTIVE PROGRAM 

Peterson presented the resolution and stated that this program has been discussed several times.  

The Urban Renewal Agency has spent about $14,000 in the past several years, and helped induce 

a lot of development.  Peterson explained that there has not been any applications for the 

program so far this year.  Harden asked if there was any development inside the Agency that did 

not ask for the incentive. Peterson stated that there was one improvement made inside the 

Agency that could have applied for the incentive.   

 

Peterson stated that the program is a tool to have in the overall tool box of potential incentives.  

Peterson explained that the program would apply to a series of home along Halsey if they were 

converted for commercial use.  There is also a large commercial building with the upper floor 

available for redevelopment.   

 

Peterson stated that the recommendation is to adopt the resolution because it does provide the 

ability to have an incentive to attract new development.  Peterson explained that while the 

program has not been used this year, there are still plenty of properties that could qualify for the 

program.  Peterson stated that the program covers the permit fees, and the business license fee.   

 

Harden stated that the program shows that we are in business to support new business.  Peterson 

stated that the flip side is that the economy is going well, and the incentive may not be needed.   

 



March 31, 2016 

Wood Village Urban Renewal Board Minutes 

Page 5 of 6 

Morasch asked if there is a way to promote the program to associations and real estate 

professionals to target redevelopment or improvements.  Peterson stated that was done on a small 

scale about a year ago.  All the eligible buildings were posted, and notices were sent to the 

property owners.  Harden asked if the meet or beat program has been advertised on a large scale.  

Peterson explained that the previous direction had been to promote the program to developers on 

a smaller scale.  Harden stated that the program might do well by offering relocation assistance 

as well.  Peterson stated that there are options for that to occur.  Peterson stated that commercial 

real estate brokers in this area are aware of the program.   

 

Upon motion by Howard, seconded by Morasch and passing 4-0, Resolution URA 1-2016 

extending the business incentive program was approved.   

 

ARATA ROAD FENCING PROJECT 

Peterson presented the update and stated that last May the Board requested that staff contact 

property owners about the project, but not move forward on the construction until the roadway is 

rebuilt.  Peterson explained that two agreements have been drafted for the property owners.  One 

is a construction easement, and the other is a maintenance agreement.  Peterson stated that the 

maintenance agreement was drafted as simple as possible while still having a level of indemnity 

for the City.   

 

Peterson stated that the project estimate is $180,000 not including staff time.  Peterson explained 

that the owner of Poplar Mobile Manner contacted us about the fencing project, and asked if they 

could be included as well.  Peterson stated that Poplar runs from the wetlands area to 223rd, and 

currently has a concrete block wall along Arata.  Peterson explained that the demolition cost of 

the wall would be minimal, but the additional fencing would be another $80,000.   

 

Harden stated that would put the project at around $260,000.  Peterson stated that is correct, but 

the project can still be financed internally.  Peterson explained that until a project hits $300,000 it 

does not make sense to go to the bond market.  Howard asked if Poplar was interested in sharing 

some of the additional costs.  Peterson stated that they indicated that they would be willing to 

remove the current wall.   

 

Peterson stated that another section to consider is on 238th and Arata.  Peterson explained that the 

idea would be to wrap the corners going onto Arata Road.  Harden stated that he thought that 

was discussed last year.  Peterson stated that it was, but it was not included in the estimate.  

Harden stated that it would be good to clean up that corner, and we could even add a monument 

sign to make it a neighborhood area.   

 

Peterson stated that we will be ready to move forward on the project as soon as the roadway is 

rebuilt.   



March 31, 2016 

Wood Village Urban Renewal Board Minutes 

Page 6 of 6 

 

BUDGET AUTHORIZATIONS AND BUDGET PLAN 

Peterson stated that the fiscal year 2016-17 budget will include the $180,000 Arata fencing 

project, with an additional $80,000 for Poplar’s fence.  Peterson explained that will be presented 

to the Budget Committee next month, along with adding in the administrative costs of the 

agency.   

 

Harden asked if that amount would include wrapping the fence along 238th.  Peterson stated that 

there should be enough in the project contingency to cover those sections.  Peterson explained 

that there could also be the option to wrap the Wood Village side of the Wood Village Blvd. 

extension.  The board indicated that they would like to wait on that section.   

 

ADJOURN 

With no further business coming before the Board, and upon a motion by Harden and passing 4-

0, the Board adjourned at 7:24pm.   

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

                       Patricia Smith 

                               Chair 

 

          __________________ 

                  Date 

 

 

 

ATTEST:                                         

 

 

__________________________________ 

Greg Dirks 

City Recorder  

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

 
 

June 14, 2016 

Wood Village Urban Renewal Board Minutes 

Page 1 of 2 

MEETING OF THE 

WOOD VILLAGE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY  

June 14, 2016 

MINUTES 

 

PRESENT: Urban Renewal Chair Patricia Smith, Members Tim Clark, Steven Morasch, and 

Brice Nissen, City Manager Peterson and interested parties. 

 

ABSENT:  Vice-Chair Stanley Dirks,  Member Scott Harden  and Craig Howard. 

 

SMITH CALLED THE MEETING TO ORDER AT 5:30PM 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: FY 2016-2017 BUDGET, AND PROPERTY TAX LEVY:  

RESOLUTION URA 2-2016 ADOPTING FISCAL YEAR 2016-17 URBAN RENEWAL 

AGENCY BUDGET AND MAKING APPROPRIATIONS 

Peterson presented the resolution, and stated that it is the recommended budget from the Budget 

Committee.  Peterson explained that the budget does not include any additional value for planned 

developments in the urban renewal area, but does include trending resources.  Peterson stated 

that revenues are expected to exceed $100,000.  Peterson explained that the budget totals 

$414,000 which includes $290,000 for new fencing along Arata Road.  Peterson stated that the 

agency will need to borrow $150,000 for the project, and the City will loan the money at 4%.   

 

Peterson stated that other expenses include personnel, supplies, and $30,000 towards potential 

development incentives.  Peterson stated that the staff recommendation is to approve the 

resolution.   

 

Smith asked if Poplar Mobile Manner has done any work to permit the agency in replacing their 

fence as well.  Peterson stated that Poplar would like us to replace the fence, and we will 

continue to work with them in order to have a consistent look.   

 

Upon motion by Morasch, seconded by Nissen and passing 4-0, Resolution URA2-2016 

adopting the fiscal year 2016-17 budget and making appropriations was approved.   

 

RESOLUTION URA 3-2016 LEVYING AND CATEGORIZING AD VALOREM TAXES 

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2016-17 



 
 

 
 

June 14, 2016 

Wood Village Urban Renewal Board Minutes 

Page 2 of 2 

Upon motion by Morasch, seconded by Nissen and passing 4-0, Resolution URA3-2016 levying 

and categorizing ad valorem taxes for fiscal year 2016-17 was approved.   

 

 

 

ADJOURN 

With no further business coming before the Board, and upon a motion and a second, the Board 

adjourned.   

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

                       Patricia Smith 

                               Chair 

 

          __________________ 

                  Date 

 

 

 

ATTEST:                                         

 

 

__________________________________ 

Greg Dirks 

City Recorder  

 

 



   

 Urban Renewal Agency Agenda Item Staff Report 
  
 Meeting Date:  February 2, 2017 
 

 
TO:  Wood Village Urban Renewal District Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Bill Peterson, City Manager 
     
DATE: January 27, 2017 
 
SUBJECT: Underwriter/Placement Agent Engagement Letter; Urban Renewal Financing 
 

 
Requested Agency Board Action 
 
Adopt Resolution number URA01-2017 authorizing the City Manager to enter into a letter of 
understanding with Piper Jaffray and Company to provide underwriting and placement services to the 
City of Wood Village, and to the Wood Village Urban Renewal Agency, for the issuance of Urban 
Renewal Bonds.  
 
Background 
 
Part of the process for the active work in the Urban Renewal Agency is to issue Urban Renewal 
Bonds to enable actions to be undertaken by the Agency.  Since the agency is a separate 
governmental entity, but will be financially reliant on the City in the initial offerings, it is suggested that 
the City and the Urban Renewal Agency both function to authorize the selection of a bond 
underwriting firm to assist in the evaluation and structuring of all potential debt.  The Wood Village 
City Council acted on January 26, 2017, to authorize an agreement with Piper Jaffray as the 
underwriter for Urban Renewal Bonds. 
 
The City Management team would have preferred to simply hire Carol Samuels in a consulting 
capacity to assist in evaluating all of the work on the potential debt issuance for the Agency.  Carol 
responded to a request to function as a financial advisor with a copy of the federal requirement that 
prohibit her from consulting if she is engaged in the active process of underwriting bonds.  Her 
approach to avert the issue, provide us with consulting assistance without direct compensation for the 
time provided, is to enter into an Engagement Letter, selecting Piper Jaffray as the firm to underwrite 
any future Urban Renewal Bonds. 
 
Carol Samuels is the Managing Director of Piper Jaffray.  Both Jeff Condit City Attorney and City 
Manager Peterson have experience working with Carol in the issuance of a variety of debt 
instruments.  Ms. Samuels leads the nation’s number 3 underwriter of negotiated long-term 
transactions nationwide, and offices in Portland.  She provides underwriting advisory services for 
dozens of municipals and school districts in Oregon.  I have worked with Carol on over a dozen 
different financing efforts, including an Urban Renewal financing and refinancing in Grants Pass.  I 
have also served with Carol on a variety of committees for the League of Oregon Cities, most notably 
the Finance and Taxation standing Committee. 
 



There are a limited number of firms in the bond underwriting industry actively practicing in Oregon.  
Merrill Lynch, JPMorgan, and Morgan Stanley round out the top four companies in the northwest.  
While each of these companies have a presence in Oregon, your management team does not have 
experience with the individuals. 
 
Oregon law does not require the City to solicit proposals for the selection of financial advisory 
services.  Your management team recommends we simply associate with Carol, and move forward, 
whether or not we actually issue a bond at this time. 
 
Alternatives 
 
The Urban Renewal Agency could take any of the following actions, or modify one of these 
suggestions: 
 

1. Direct the Staff to prepare and issue a Request for Proposals, evaluating all potential providers 
of underwriting services, or 

2. Take no action, or 
3. Adopt the resolution and enter into an agreement with Piper Jaffray. 

 
Fiscal Impact 
 
The cost of services for Ms. Samuels will not be incurred until an actual debt is issued.  The 
agreement is the authorization for Piper Jaffray to place future bonds that are issued, from which they 
will derive an underwriting fee. It would be possible to seek financial assistance directly from a non-
affiliated provider (an advisor that does not offer any underwriting or debt services), however, we 
would then be responsible for direct payment for services. 
 
Suggested Motions 
 
I move to adopt Resolution number URA 01-2017 authorizing the City Manager to enter into an 
Underwriter/Placement Agent Engagement Letter with Piper Jaffray. 
 



RESOLUTION NUMBER URA 01-2017 
 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN UNDERWRITER 
PLACEMENT AGENT ENGAGEMENT LETTER WITH PIPER JAFFRAY. 
 
WHEREAS: 
 

1. The Board of Directors of the Wood Village Urban Renewal Agency desire to have 
professional financial assistance on the structuring and potential formats for Urban Renewal 
Bonds, or for municipally held debt portions of future bond inclusions, and 

2. The Wood Village Urban Renewal Agency is a component unit of the City of Wood Village, and 
3. Separate authorization for an agreement for professional underwriting assistance has been 

obtained from the City, and 
4. Piper Jaffray is a recognized leader in municipal finance in the Northwest, and specifically 

Carol Samuels, Managing Director of Piper Jaffray, is an acknowledged technical leader in the 
industry. 

 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Wood Village Urban 
Renewal Agency that the City Manager is authorized to sign an engagement letter for 
underwriter/Placement Agent services with Piper Jaffray & Co. for the potential issuance of Urban 
Renewal Financing undertaken between 2017 and 2019, as identified in Attachment A. 
 
 
Motion to approve by ____________; seconded by _______________ and adopted this 2nd day of 
February, 2017. 
 
 
 
 
  YEAS _____________  NAYS ________________ 
 
        
 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Timothy Clark 
       Chair 
       Wood Village Urban Renewal Agency 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
__________________________ 

Greg Dirks, City Recorder 
 
  




















	URA Agenda Feb 2 2017
	Official March 31, 2016 Urban Renewal Minutes
	Official June 14, 2016 Urban Renewal Minutes
	UrbanRenewalStaffReport.piperjaffray
	Attachment to Res 1-2017

